Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Signode India Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Signode India Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its associate (refer Note 38 to the attached consolidated financial
statements), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the
consolidated cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information prepared based on the
relevant records. (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Holding Company and its associates as at March 31,
2020, of consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income),
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company and its associate in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI and the relevant
provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph 11 of the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

4. We draw your attention to Note 40 to the financial statements, which describes the management’s assessment
of the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on the business operations of the Company. The
management believes that no adjustments are required in the financial statements as it does not impact the
current financial year, however, in view of the various preventive measures taken (such as lock-down
restrictions by the Government of India, travel restrictions etc.) and highly uncertain economic environment,
a definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent periods is highly dependent upon circumstances as
they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Signode India Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Other Information

5. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors report, but does not inciude the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and the reports of the other auditors as furnished to us
(Refer paragraph 11 below), we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

6. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash
flows, and changes in equity of the Holding Company and its associate in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and of its
associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Holding Company and its associate and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

7. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Holding Company and of
its associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Holding Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

8. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Holding Company and of its
associate are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Holding Company
and of its associate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Signode India Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit proccdures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Holding Company and its associate to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Holding Company and its associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Holding Company and its associate to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements
of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

12. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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To the Members of Signode India Limited
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Other Matters

11.

13.

The consolidated financial statements also include the Holding Company’s share of total
comprehensive income (comprising of profit and .other comprehensive income) of Rs. 755.92
lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2020 as considered in the consolidated financial statements,
in respect of 1 associate company whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to
us by the Management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this associate company and our
report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other Information
insofar as it relates to the aforesaid associate, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditor.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

14.

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books
and the reports of the other auditor.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the report of
the statutory auditor of its associate company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Holding
company and its associate company incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Signode India Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure A.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Holding Company and its associates— Refer Note 29(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

ii. The Holding Company and its associate had long-term contracts as at March 31, 2020 for which there
were no material foreseeable losses. The Holding Company and its associate did not have derivative
contracts as at March 31, 2020.

ifi. During the year ended March 31, 2020, there were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its
associate company incorporated in India.

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Group for the
year ended March 31, 2020.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants

!L’\A fxzi\\/:l\b“\ AN

Dhiraj Kumar

Partner

Membership Number 060466
UDIN: 20060466AAAADI7161

Hyderabad
October 05, 2020
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 14(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Signode India Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of Signode India Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its associate company, which
are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, and its associate company to whom reporting
under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements is applicable which are companies incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on “internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and
the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
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Referred to in paragraph 14(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Signode India Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
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transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurancé that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its associate company ,which are companies incorporated in India,
have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2020 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Also refer paragraph 4 of our main audit report.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to 1 associate company,
which is company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of the auditor of such company
incorporated in India. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants

L ‘M’\A WAL
Dhiraj Kumar ~

Partner
Membership Number 060466
UDIN: 20060466AAAADI7161

Hyderabad
October 05, 2020



Signode India Limited
Cansolidated Balance Sheet

Particulars Note No ‘As al As at
’ March 31, 2020 March 21, 2019
Z in lakhs ¥ inlakhs
A |ASSETS
| |INon-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3A 19,333.38 20,11576
(b) Capital work -in-progress 3A 260.81 68133
(c) Goodwill 3B 48,869 88 48,869 88
(d) Other Intangible assets 3A 248 87 378 71
(e) Right-of-use-assels 3D 2,183 35 -
(f) Financial assets
(i) Investments 4 5430 18 4,964 97
(i) Other financials assets 5 1,474.88 1,332.16
(g) Other non-current assets 6 3,324 61 3,434 93
(h) Non-Current tax asset (net) 19 1,054 80 368 60
Total non-current assets 82,180.76 80,146.34
Il |Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 14,745.39 14,841 03
{b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 8 30,616 19 28,309 01
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 9 8,629 43 313915
(ili) Other financials assets 5 745.46 902 96
(c) Contract assets 10 7,500.94 5426 14
(d) Other current assets 6 2,130.90 221877
Total current assets 64,368.31 54,834.06
Total assets 1,46,549.07 1,34,980.40
B [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
| |Equity
(a) Equity share capital 11 7.415289 8,253.61
(b) Other equity 12 95 656 76 92 167.71
Total equity 1,03,072.05 1,00,421.32
1| [Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 - 189 10
(i) Lease liabilities 3D 349 83 .
(b) Provisions 14 33378 143 72
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 15 9,355.35 5,932 57
Total non-current liabilities 10,038.96 6,265.39
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 2,835 60 5,000.00
(ii) Lease liabilities 3D 40008 -
(iiiy Trade payables 16 27,505 72 20,229 15
(iv) Other financial liabilities 17 909 56 1,240 75
(b) Contract liabilities 18 1,039 37 712 32
(c) Provisions 14 183 50 99 88
(d) Other current liabilities 20 564.23 1.011 59
Total current liabilities 33,438.06 28,293.69
Total liabilities 43,477.02 34,559.08
Total equity and liabilities 1,46,549.07 1,34,980.40
Accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements 1to 41
In terms of our report altached
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP _For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number: 304026 E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants f
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Partner Managi Dlrcctoh Whole time Director
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Vanala Kaleru ; Deep Chowdhury
Company Secretary i inancial Officer
Place : Hyderabad Place : Hyderabad

Date : October 5, 2020 Date : October 5, 2020




Signode Indla Limited
Consolldated Statement of Proflt and Loss

statements

Particulars Note No. For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
¥ In lakhs Z In lakhs
1 Revenue from operations 21 1,32,979.36 1,34,831.53
i |Other income 22 1,172.09 1,081.53
il |Total Income (I + ) 1,34,161.45 1,35,913.06
IV  |Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 23a 51,003.98 49,303 18
(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade 23b 28,181.45 30,729 40
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 23¢c (780.13) 669.50
stock-in-trade
(d) Employee benefits expense 24 21,624.28 20,175.96
(e) Finance costs 25 1,083.08 81180
(f) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense 3C 2,673.52 2,383.68
(g) Other expenses 26 943157 10,476.76
Total expenses 1.13,217.76 1,14,550.28
Profit before tax and share of profit of associate 20,933 70 21,362.78
A Share of net profit of assoclate 755.92 74382
VI  |Profit before tax (il - 1V) 21,689.62 22,106.60
VIl |Tax expense: 27
(a) Current tax 5649.76 5,588.36
(b) Deferred tax 1,767.46 1,950.36
(c) Taxes related to prior years 65.47 129
7,482.69 7,540.01
VIl | Profit for the year (V - VI) 14,206.93 14,566.59
IX |Other comprehenslve Income
(A) |items that will not be re-classlified to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation (net) (160.96) (96.32)
Income tax relating to items that will not be re-classified to profit or loss 56.25 33.67
Total other comprehensive Income (net of tax) (104.71) (62.64)
Total comprehenslve Income for the vear (VIII+IX) 14.102.22 14,503.94
X Earnings per equlty share (of Rs. 10/-each)- Baslc and dlluted 28 17.90 16.39
Accompanying notes forming part of the consolldated financial 1to 41

In terms of our report attached
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

Ch 2i Accountants
O‘b\

Dhiraj Kumar

Partner

Membership number: 060466

Place : Hyderabad
Dale : October 5, 2020

and on behalf of the Board of Directors

.

RVS Ramakrishna

h;nag n irector

Place : Hyderabad
Date : Oclober 5, 2020

owe
Vanaja Kalgru
Company Secreta

&ura\r Matiestwari

Whole time Director

. a\\om A

Deep Chowdhury
Chlef Financlal Officer




Signode India Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(Einlakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 21,689.62 22,106.60
Adiustments for;
Deprecialion, amortisation and impairmenl expense 2,673.52 2,387.33
Unrealised exchange loss / (gain) (nel) (299.29) 8394
Interest expense 1,083.08 811.80
Bad debts and advances written off 76561 56.92
Provision for loss allowance of trade receivables (132.64) 612 18
Cash discount received (12.78) (1.46)
(Profit)/loss on sale of fixed assets (net) (11.22) 58.36
Interest income {369.35) (659.12)
Liabilities no longer required wrilten back (374) (174)
Share of profits of associate (755.92) (743.82)
2.937.27 260439
Operating profit before working capital changes 24 ,626.89 24,710.99
Changes in working capital;
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Invenlories 95.64 (2,576.93)
Trade receivables (2,640.37) (2,509.68)
Other financial assels 83.69 4,417.20
Contract assets (2,074.80) (5,426.14)
Olher assets (1,201.42) (853.11)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 7,241.13 1,072.81
Other financial liabilities (95.08) (1,540.99)
Contract liabilities 327.05 712.32
Other liabilities (447 .36) (507.53)
Provisions 168.97 (212.22)
1,467.45 (7,424.27)
Cash generated from operations 26,084 34 17,286,72
Net income tax (paid) (4,746.11) (6,856.83)
Met cash flow from / (used in) operaling activities (A} 21,338.23 10,429.89
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipments including capital advances (1,515.57) (3.023.71)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 50.48 30.22
Dividend income from associate 290.70
Interest received 300.44 749 59
(B73.95) (2,243.90)
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (873.95) (2,243.90)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from / (Repayment) of shori-term borrowings (2,164.40) 5,000.00
Buyback of equity shares (10,650.00) (27,000.00)
Buyback expenses (801.49) (1,.371.45)
Proceeds from / (Repayment) of long-lerm borrowings - 48.60
Principle Payment of lease Liabilities (318.81) -
Intares! paid (1,090.78) (793.17)
(16,025 .47) (24,116.02)
Net cash flow from / (used In) financing activities (C) (15,025.47) (24,116.02)
Netincrease / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 5,438.81 (15,930.03)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of lhe year 3,13915 19,106.93
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 51.47 (37.75)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8,629.43 3,138.15
Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents wilh the Balance Sheel:
Net Cash and cash equivalenis 8.629.43 3,139.15
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 110 40

In terms of our report attached.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Reqistration Number: 304026E/E-300009

o Accountants
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g A
Partner

Membership number: 060466
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[ate - October 5, 2020
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E:)r and on behalf of the Board of Direclors

RVS Ramakrishna
Managi Directe\r
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Vanaja Kaleru
Company Secretdry

Gaurav Maheshwari
Whole time Director

Deep Chowdhury
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Hyderabad
Date . Oclaber &, 2020
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Signode India Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

General information

Signode India Limited (the Company) is a limited company incorporated in India an August 13, 2003 under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 applicable in India. Its holding company is Strapex Holdings Limited. United Kingdom and the Ulimate Holding Company is Crown Holdings
Inc, USA The Company is engaged in the business of industrial packaging and manufacture of strap. siretch, protective packaging, packaging tools
and equipment that are used to apply the bulk packaging materials. The Company caters to bath domestic and inteynational markets. The addresses
of its registered and principal place of business is 3rd Floor, Jyothi Majeslic 8.2.120/84 Road Mo-2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad. The Company Is the
leading Industrial Packaging solutions provider having manufacturing locations at Rudraram, Silvassa, Rudrapur, Bangalore and Dahej

Significant accounting policies

Basls of preparation of financial statements and Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial stalements are prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost convenlion except for certain financial instruments, net
defined benefit assel/liability which are measured at fair value. The consolidalad financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (lhe "Act") read with the Companies (Indian Accounling
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016,

Accounting policies have been cansistently applied to alf the years presented except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or
a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accaunting policy hitherlo in use.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 April 2019:
i.Ind AS 116, Leases

ii. Long-term Inlerest in Assoiates and Joint Venlures — Amendment to Ind AS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint venlures

iii. Uncertain Income Tax Treatment —Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes

iv. Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement — Amendment to Ind AS 18, Employee Benefits

v. Amendment to Ind AS 103, Business Combinations and IndAS 111, Joint Arrangemenls

vi. Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes

vii. Amendment to Ind AS 23 , Borrowing costs

The Company had lo change its accounting policies as a result of adoplion of Ind AS 116. This is disclosed in nole 30. The other amendments listed
above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior pericds and are not expecled to significantly affect the current or fulure periods.

Principles of consolidation and equlty accounting

Associates

Associate is an entity over which the Company exercises significant influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the case where the
Company holds between 20% to 50% of the voting rights Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after
initially being recognised al cost

The Company did not have any subsidiary or joint venture.

Equity accounting:

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafler to recognise the Company's share of
post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Company's share of other comprehensive income of the invesiee in other
comprehensive income, Dividends received or recalvable from associate is recognised as o reduction in the carrying amount of the investment
When the Company's share of losses in an equily accounted investment equals or excesds the inlerest in the investee, including any other
unsecured long term receivables, the compary does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the Company's interest in the associate,
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaclion provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the managemenl 1o make eslimate and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosures of
contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The eslimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statemants are based upon
the management's evalualion of the relevant facts and circumstances as at Ihe date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from
these eslimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are recognized
in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any fulure years affected.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and the net realisable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered
necessary. Cost of inventories are determined on weighted average basis. Cosl includes all charges in bringing the goods to the point of sale,
including octroi and other levies, transit insurance. Work-in-progress and finished goods include appropriate proportion of overheads as applicable.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and cosls necessary to make the
sale

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in ihe balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and shori-term deposils net of bank overdraft with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of lhe cash flow stalement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash in banks and short-lerm deposils nel of bank
overdrafl

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reporled using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax for the year, is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-
cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or fulure cash receipts or payments The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information
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Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated al cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any Cost of acquisilion or
construclion is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes, olher directly atiributable incidental expenses to bring the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management

Subsequent costs are included in the assel's carrying amount or recognized as a separate assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable that fulure
economic benefils associated with the item will flow lo the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separale assel is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and mainlenance are charged to Stalement of Profit
and Loss during lhe year in which they are incurred

The Company depreciales property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight line melhod. Based on the technical
assessment of useful life, certain items of property plant and equipment are being deprecialed over useful lives different from the prescribed useful
lives under Schedule (I to the Companies Act, 2013 Management believes that such estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

i) Estimated useful lives:

Asset Useful Life
Building 30 Years
Plant and Equipment 10-15 Years
Office Equipment 3-6 Years
Vehicles 8-10 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

ii) Estimated Residual Value 0-5% of Qriginal cost

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of additions, except in cases of assets costing up to Rs. 5000 each, where each asset is
fully depreciated in the year of purchase. On assets sold, discarded etc. during the year, depreciation is provided up to the date of sale/discard.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounl. These are included in Statement of Profit and Loss
under Other Income/other expenses

Capital work-in-progress:

Projecls under which property, plant and equipment are not yet ready for their intended use are carried al cost, comprising direct cost and related
incidental expenses

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at each financial year end and adjusled prospectively, as
appropriate.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assels acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised at their fair value at the
acquisilion date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported al cost less accumulaled amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets lhat are acquired separately.

Goodwill recognized in a business combination is carried at their fair value at the time of acquisition less accumulated impairment losses.

Useful life of Intanaible assats

Asset Useful Life
Non-Competition Fees 5 Years
Order Book 1 Year

Revenue recognition

(i) The Company earns revenue from:

- Sale of goods

- Sale of packing equipment

- Provision of services

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring promised goods or services (i.e. an asset) to a
customer.

(ii) Satisfaction of performance obligations over time:
Revenue from sale of contracl packaging are recognised over a period of ime.

Revenue is recognised over time where the transfer of control of goods or services takes place over time by measuring the progress towards
complele satisfaction of that performance obligation, if one of the following criteria are mel:

- The customer simultaneously receives and cunsumes the benefits provided by the enlitys performance as the enlity performs

- The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset lhat the customer conlrols as the asset is crealed or enhanced, or

- The entily's performance does nol create an asset wilh an alternative use lo the enlity, and the entity has an enforcable right to payment for
performance completed to date

(li) Satisfaction of performance obligations at a point in time:

Revenue from sale of goods and services is recognised at a point in lime upon transfer of control of an assel to the customer:

In respect of cases where the fransfer of control does not take place over a period of time, the company recognises at @ point in time when it
salisfies performance obligations

The performance obligation is salisfied when the customer obtains control of the assel The indicalors for transfer of control include the following:
- Company has transferred he physical possession of the assel

- The customer has the legal right to the asset

- The Company has a present right to payment for the assel

- The Customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset

(iv) Measurement

Revenue is recognised at the amount of lransaction price that is allocated to lhe performance obligalion The lransaction price is lhe amount of
consideration lo which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amount
collected on behalf of third parlies




29

(a)
0]

(ii)

(D]

(iv)

(b)
0]

(i)

i)

(c)

Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
Other income:

Income in respect of inleresl on fixed deposit wilh banks is recognized on accrual basis at the rate at which such enlitlemenl accrues, Royaity
income is accounted on accrual basis

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract lhat gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another enlity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Al initial recognition, financial asset is measured at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial assel nol al fair value through profit or loss,
transaclion costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset Transaclion costs of financial assels carried al fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assels are classified in foliowing categories:

a) al amortized cost; or

b) al fair value through other comprehensive income; or

c) at fair value through profit or loss.

The classificalion depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contraclual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are medsured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective inlerest rate
method (EIR)

Fair valle through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assels that are heid for collection of contraclual cash flows and for selling the financial
asanls, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and Interest, are measured al fair value: through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through 0C|, excepl for the recognition of impalrmenl gains ot losses, interest
revenue and foreign excharnge gains and losses which are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial assel is derecognized, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to Statemenl of Profit and Loss and recognized in other gains/
(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effeclive interest rate method

Fair value (hrouah profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amonrtized cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Investments in associates
Invesiments In associales are carried at cost/deemed cost applied on transition to Ind AS, less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an

indicalion of impairment exists, the carrying amount of invesiment is assessed and an impairment provision is recognised, if required immediately to
its recoverable amount. On disposal of such investments, difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

a) the rights ta receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or

b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, bul assumes a contractual obligation 1o pay the cash flows to one or
more recipients.

Where the financial asset is iransferred then in that case financial asset is derecognized only if substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset is transferred. Where the entity has nol transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, lhe financial
asset is not derecognized

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Al initial recognition, Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and at amortized cost, as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognized initially al fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly aitributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Finaneial liahilities al fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabiliies al fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Separaled embedded derivalives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabililies held for trading are recognized in the Statemenl of Profit and Loss

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interesi-bearing loans and botrowings are subsequenlly measured al amartized cost using the EIR method. Galns and losses
are recognized in Stalement of Profit and Loss when the liakilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amartization process. Amonized cost
15 calculated by laking Into account any discount or pramium en acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR The EIR
amorization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Derecoqgnition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under lhe liabitity is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an exisling financial liability is
replaced by anather from the same lender on substantially difierant terms, or the terms of an exisling liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange of madification |s trealed as the derecognition of 1lie ariginal liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts {s recognised in the Statemeant of Profil and Loss as finance costs.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assels and liabilities are offset and lhe nel amount is reported in the balance sheel where there is a legally enforceable right to offset lhe
recognized amounts and there is an intenlion to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and setlie the liabilily simullaneously. The legally
enforcaatle right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counlerparly
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Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured al amoriized cost. Any
difference belween the proceeds (net of transaction cosls) and the redemption amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaclion costs of the loan to
the extent that il is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred unlil the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence thal it is probable thal some or all the facility will be drawn down, Lhe fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability thal has been exlinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assels lransferred or liabililies assumed, is recognized in slatement of profit and loss as other gains/(losses)

Borrowings are classified as currenl liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settiement of the liabilily for at leasl 12 months
afler the reporling period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting
period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporling date, the entity does nol classify the liability as current, if the
lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of financial statements for issue, not lo demand payment as consequence of the
breach.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly allributable to the acquisition, construction or produclion of a qualifying asset are capitalized
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assels are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of lime to gel ready for iheir intended use or sale

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducled from lhe
borrowing cost eligible for capitalizalion.

Other borrowings costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases

Till March 31, 2019:

As a lessee

Leases of properly, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially al! the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased properly or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as
appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged lo the profil or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operaling leases (nel of any incentives reteived from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation 1o compensate for the lessor's
expected inflationary cost increases

As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a siraight-line basis over the lease lerm unless the
receipls are struclured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature,

Assets given under finance leases are recognised as receivables at an amount equal to the net invesiment in the lease and the finance income is
based on a constant rate of retum on the outstanding net investment.

Effective from April 1, 2019:

As alessee:

From 1 April 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for
use by the company. Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabililies include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

« fixed payments (including in-substance fixed paymentls), less any lease incentives receivable

- variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

- amounts expected 1o be payable by the compan under residual value guarantees

« the exercise price of a purchase option if the company is reasonably certain to exercise that oplion, and

« payments of penallies for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the company exercising that option.

Lease paymenls to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
company, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the necessary o
oblain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Lease paymenis are allocated between principal and finance cost. The findnce costis eharged lo profil or loss over the lease pariod so as to
produce a canstant periodic rate of Interest on the remaining balance of the liabllity for ezch period. Right-ol-use assets are generally depreciated
ovar the shortar of the asset's useful life-and the lease lerm on a straight-line basis. Paymenls associated with short-tarm leases and all leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a siraight-line basis as an expense in prafil of loss. Shori-term leases aré lsases with a lease lerm ol 12 months
or less

As a lessor:

Lease income from operating leases where the company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease lerm. Initial direct
costs incurrec in oblaining an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
lerm on the basis of lease income. The respeclive leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on lheir nature. The company did not need
{o make any adjusiments lo lhe accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard
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Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Impairment

Financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expecled credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on financial assets that are measured at amortized cost and FVOCI.

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company delermines that whether there has been a significant
increase in Ihe credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impaimment loss
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent years, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entily reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based
on 12 month ECL.

Life time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 month
ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the year end

ECL is the difference between all conlractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
entity expects 1o receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR When estimaling the cash flows, an entity is required lo consider all
contraclual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in
rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual
term of the financial instrument

In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payment is more than 60 days past due.

ECL impairmment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as income/expense in he statlement of profit and loss. In
balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured at amortized cost is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the assel meets write off criteria, the Company does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e higher of the fair value less cosl o sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows thal are largely independent of those from olher assels. In
such cases. the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generaling unit (CGU) lo which the asset belongs

If the recoverable amount of an assel (or CGU) is eslimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assel (or CGU) is
reduced to ils recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company review/assess at each
reporling dale if there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired, If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any gaodwill allocated to the unit and then to the olhar assets of the unil pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unil. Any
impairmenl loss for goodwill is recognised direclly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequentl periods

Foreign currency transactions

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian rupee. Transaclions in foreign currencies are recorded on initial recognition at the
exchange rale prevailing on the date of the transaction

Monetary ilems (i.e receivables, payable, loans etc.) denominaled in foreign currency are reported using the closing exchange rate on each
reporting date

The exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting these items at rates different from rates at which these were
initially recorded/reported in previous financial statements are recognized as income/ expense in lhe period in which they arise,

Employee benefits
Long term employee Benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Company's contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution
plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

The liability recognized in respect of gratuity is the present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of
plan assets, where applicable. The Company makes contribution 1o the LIC for Employees Gratuily Scheme in respect of employees of one of the
division. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuary using the Projecled Unit Credil Method. Remeasurement comprising
actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets (excluding net interesl) are recognized in the other comprehensive income for the period in
which they occur and is not reclassified o profit or loss

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months aiter thee end of the period in which the employee renders the related
service are recognised as a liabilily at the present value of the defined benefit obligation determined using the Projected Unit Cost Melhod as at the
balance sheel date less the fair value of the plan assets out of which the obiligations are expected lo be setlled.

Short term employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-lerm employee benefils expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised
during lhe year when the employees render the service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are
expected to occur wilhin twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service.
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Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Taxes on income

The Income-tax liability is provided in accordance with lhe provisions of the income-tax Acl, 1961 Deferred income lax assets and liabilities are
recognized for all temporary differences arising betwean the tax bases of assels and liabilities and (heir carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax assets are reviswed al each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable Lhat the related tax benefit will be
realized

Income tax and deferred lax are measured on lhe basis of the tax rales and tax laws enacled or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period and are recognized in profil or loss, excepl when they relate to ilems that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equily,
in which case, the income lax and deferred tax are also recognized in olher comprehensive income or directly in equity, respeclively

Deferred tax assels and liabilities and advance against current tax are classified as non-current assets and liabililies. Current {ax assels and
liabilities and Deferred lax assels and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred lax balances relate to the same taxation authority

Deferred lax assets are recognised for all deduclible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that fulure taxable amounts
will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses. Management periodically evaluales posilions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
1o be paid to the tax authorities.

Minimurm Allernate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with he tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income
tax liability, is considered as an assat if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax over and above MAT. Accordingly,
MAT is recognised as an assel in the Balance Sheet, when itis probable that future economic benefit associaled with it will flow to the Company.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions for legal claims, volume discounts and retumns are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
resull of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligalion and the amounl can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating iosses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period

Provision for product warranties is recorded when products are sold Product warranty costs are accrued based on pasl experience, adjusted for
current trends.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confimed only by the
occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a prasent obligation that arises
from past evenls where it is eilher not probable that an outflow of resaiurces will he required 1o setlle or a reliable estimale of the amount cannot be
made.

Government Grant
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Company will comply with all attached conditions. Grants are presented in Profit and loss by deducting the related expense.

Earnings per share:

Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares oulstanding during the
year. Diluted eamings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other chatges lo experse or
ineome relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the waighted average number of equily shares considered for deriving baslc eamings per
share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could hzve been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares:

Operating Cycle:
Based on the nature of products / activities of lhe Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash

Rounding off amounts:
All amounts disclosed in financial slatements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per requirement of Schedule lil of the Act,
unless olherwise stated,

Estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements regquires the use of accounfing estimates which, by definition, will seldam equal the ectual results.
Management also needs lo exercise judgement in applying the Company's accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement of camplexity, and of llems which are more likely to be
materially adjusted due lo estimates and assumptions turning oul 1o be different thah those originally assessed, Detajled information about sach of
hese estimales and judgements is included in relevant notes logether with information abeut the basis of calculation for each affected line item in
the financial statements

The area involving critical estimates or judgements is:

1. Estimated goodwill impairment

2 Estimation of defined benefit obligation

3. Estimalion of provision for warranty claims

4. Impairmant of trade receivables

Estimates and judgemenis are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectalions of future
evenls that may have a financial impact on the Company and thal are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.




(a)

(b)

Signode Indla Limlted
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recogrized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that laxable profit will be available against which the losses
can be utilised. Significant managemen! judgment is required to determine the amourit of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon
the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company neither have ay laxahle temporary difference nar any tax planning opportunities available that could partly support the recognition of
these losses as deferred tax assels On this basis, the Company has determined that it cannot recognize deferred tax assets on the tax losses
carried forward except for the unabsorbed depreciation. Refer Note 27.

Defined benefit plans (gratuily benefits and leave encashment)

The cost of the defined benefil plans such as gratuity and leave encashment are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the fulure. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due 1o the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each year end.

The principal assumplions are the discount and salary growth rale. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on gavernment
bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of liabilities. Salary increase rate takes inlo account of inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors on long term basis. For details refer Note 32.
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Signode India Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 3D: Leases

(i) Amounts recognised in balance sheet

As at As at
March 31, 2020 April 01, 2019
¥ in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Right of use assets
Land and Building 1,787.51 1,937.94
Vehicles 395.84 365.07
Total 2,183.35 2,303.01
As at As at
March 31, 2020 April 01, 2019*
Zin lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Lease Liabilities
Current 400.08 330.82
Non Current 349.83 535.09
Total 749.91 865.91

* |n the previous year, the company only recognised lease assets and lease liabilities in relation to leases that were
classified as finance leases under IND AS 17, Leases. The assets were presented in property, plant and equipment
and the liabilities as part of borrowings and other financial liabilities. No material adjustments were noted on adoption

of Ind AS 116 on April 01, 2019.

1) Additions to the ROU assets during the current financial year were Rs. 411.97 lakhs
2) Total Cash outfiow for leases for the year ended march 31, 2020 was Rs. 535.50 Lakhs
3) The lease rentals are fixed as per the terms of agreement and there are no variable lease payments

(ii) Amounts recognised in Statement of Proft & Loss

For the year ended

March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

¥ in lakhs Zin lakhs
Depreciation Charge of right-of-use assets
Land and Building 352.63 B
Vehicles 144.12 -
496.75 -
Interest Expense 91.99 -
Total 588.74 -




Signode India Limlted
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 4: Investment

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs Zin lakhs
Investment in equity shares (At cost)
Unquoted (fully paid up)
Investment in associate: Stopak India Private Limited
170,512 (As at March 31, 2019: 170,512) shares of ¥1 each fully paid up.
Opening balance 4,963.32 4,219.50
Add: Share of profit 755.92 743.82
Less: Dividend income (290.71) .
5,428.53 4,963.32
Other investments
Patancheru Enviro-Tech Limited 1.65 1.65
16,470 (As at March 31, 2019: 16,470) shares of 10 each fully paid up.
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 5,430.18 4.964.97




Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 5: Other financial assets

Non-Current

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Zin lakhs T in lakhs
Unsecured, considered good
(a) Security deposits 231.76 325.69
(b) Earnest money deposits 19.73 -
() Interest accrued on deposits 9.62 -
(d) Retention money with customers 330.83 48.86
(e) Finance lease receivables 295.44 273.51
(f) Balances held as margin money for guarantees 587.51 684.10
issued by banks (Refer note (i) below)

Total 1,474.88 1,332.16
Notes:

(i) The balances held as margin money for guarantees issued by bank includes margin money of ¥ 375 lakhs (March 31, 2019

375 lakhs) against cash credit limit from bank and ¥ 359.56 lakhs (

secure the Company's Letter of Credit and for guarantees issued by bank to customers.

March 31, 2019 309.10 lakhs) subject to first charge to

Current
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Z in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Unsecured considered good
(a) Security deposits 172.64 88.09
(b) Earnest money deposits 12.20 10.98
(c) Retention money with customers 165.08 657.14
(d) Finance lease receivables 165.07 122.62
(e) Interest accrued on deposits 83.42 2413
(f) Balances held as margin money for guarantees 147.05 E
issued by banks (Refer note (i) above)

Total 745.46 902.96




Sighode India Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 6: Other assets

Non Current

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Zin lakhs ¥ in lakhs
(a) Capital advances 74.34 110.25
(b) Prepaid expenses 61.50 36.43
(c) Leasehold land prepayment # - 1,345.35
(d) Balances with Government authorities* 3,188.77 1,942.90
Total 3,324.61 3,434.93

* Includes amounts paid under protest ¥ 159.61 lakhs (March 31, 2019: ¥ 143.84 lakhs) towards sales tax
disputes and ¥ 2,929.57 lakhs (March 31, 2019: 1,693.70 lakhs) towards deposits for income tax related case
and Z 44.69 lakhs towards deposits with Customs authorities.

Current
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs F in lakhs
(a) Leasehold land prepayment # - 156.35
(b) Advances to employees 123.62 117.08
(c) Prepaid expenses 173.70 196.64
(d) Balances with Government authorities 988.30 1,073.12
(e) Export benefits receivable 484.50 366.09
(f) Advance to suppliers
Unsecured, considered good 360.78 447.49
Doubtful 10.69 11.94
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances (10.69) (11.94)
Total 2,130.90 2,215.77

# Refer note 3D for reclassification to Rou asset on adoption of Ind AS 116




Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 7: Inventories

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs T in lakhs

(a) Raw materials 4,217.27 5,036.34
(b) Work-in-progress 3,182.59 2,301.31
(c) Finished goods 2,773.04 3,352.42
(d) Stock-in-trade 4,060.70 3,685.66
(e) Goods-in-transit 381.22 278.03
() Stores and spares 130.57 187.27
Total 14,745.39 14,841.03




Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 8: Trade receivables

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs Z in lakhs
Trade receivables 26,664.08 27,164.61
Receivables from related parties 4,475.87 2,566.41
31,139.95 29,731.02

Less: Loss allowance 523.76 1,422.01
Total 30,616.19 28,309.01
Break up of security details
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 30,616.19 28,309.01
Trade receivables - credit impaired 523.76 1.422.01
Total 31,139.95 29.731.02
Loss allowance 523.76 1.422.01
Total 30,616.19 28,309.01
Notes:

1) The Company estimates the allowance for uncollectible accounts by applying % reserve based on aging of the
debts due and specifically taken for debts where conditions are present for uncollectibility. In addition, the allowance
for uncollectible accounts includes reserves for customer credits and cash discounts, which are also estimated based

on past experience.

Reconciliation of loss allowance brovision

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Z in lakhs Z in lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,422.01 809.83
Add: Provision for expected credit loss recognised during the year - 612.18
Less: Provision reversed during the year (132.64) -
Less: Bad debt expense charged off during the year (765.61) -
Balance at the end of the year 523.76 1,422.01




Signode India Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 9: Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs T in lakhs
Balances with banks
- In current accounts - 2,262.09
- In EEFC accounts 794.43 877.06
- Deposits with maturity of less than three months 7,835.00 -
Total 8,629.43 3,139.15
Note 10: Contract assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Unsecured, considered good
Contract assets 7,500.94 5,426.14
Total 7,500.94 5,426.14




Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 11: Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Number of Number of
shares Zin lakhs shares Zin lakhs
{a) Authorised share capital
Equity shares of 10 each 15,00,00,000 15,000.00 15,00,00,000 15,000.00
(b} Issued
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 7.41,52,940 7,4156.29 8,25,36,138 8,253.61
{c) Subscribed and fully paid up*
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 7,41,52,940 741529 8,25,36,126 8,253 61
Total 7,415.29 8,253.61

* Refer notes (i) to (iv} below

i. Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

a) Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

No. of shares Zinlakhs No. of shares Zin lakhs
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each
At the beginning of the year 8,25,36,126 8,253.61 10,70,86,046 10,708.60
Less: Bought back during the year 83,83,186 838.32 2,45,49,920 2,454.99
At the end of the year 7,41,52,940 7,415.29 8,25,36,126 8,253.61

b) Aggregate number and class of shares bought back for the period of last 5 years immediately preceding the date of which balance sheet

(In numbers)

Class of shares FY 19-20 FY 18-19 FY 17-18 FY 16-17 FY 15-16
Equity shares boughi back of ¥ 10 each 83,83,186 2,45,49,920 2,44,00,000
ii. Detail of shares held by Holding Company and shareholders holding As at As at
mare than 5% equity shares with voting rights are as under : No of shares  Percentage No of shares Percentage
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each with voting righls

Strapex Holdings Limited., UK 7,41.52934 99.99% 8,25,36,120 99,99%

iii. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares:

Equity Shares. The Company has only one class of equily shares having par valiie of 2 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitied to one vote per share held. In respect
af equily shares, voting right shall be in same proportion as the capital paic upen such equity share. In the event of dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, which
s subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting, il shall be in the same proportion as the capital paid upon such equity share. In the event
of liquidation, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, afler distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will

be in proportion 1o the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. The shares bought back in the earlier years were cancelled immediately

iv. No class of shares have been issued as bonus shares or for consideration other lhan cash by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding

the current year end
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 12: Other Equity

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs Tin lakhs

Other equity
Securities premium 36,767.64 47,380.81
Capital redemplion reserve 7,503.31 6,664.99
Retained eamings 51,385.81 38,121.91
Total 95,656.76 92,167.71
(a) Securities premium account
Opening balance 47,380.81 73,297.27
Less: Utitised during the year on account of buyback of equity shares (9,811.68) (24,545.01)
Less: Expenses on buyback of equity shares (801.49) (1,371.45)

Closing balance 36,767.64 47,380.81
(b) Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening balance 6,664.99 4,210.00
Add: On account of buyback of shares 838.32 2,454 99

Closing balance 7,503.31 6,664.99
{c) Retalned earnings
Opening balance 38,121.91 25573.24
Add: Change in accounting policy - Ind AS 115 499.72
Add: Profit for the year 14,102.22 14,503.94
Less: Transferred to Capital Redemption Reserve on account of buyback of shares (838.32) (2,454.99)

Closing balance 51,385.81 38,121.91

Total 95,656.76 92 167.71




Signode India Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 13: Borrowings

a) Non-Current

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Secured — at amortised cost
Long-term maturities of finance lease obligations - 189.10
Total - 189.10
b) Current
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Unsecured
Export packing credit loans 2,500.00 5,000.00
Bank Overdraft 335.60 -
Total 2,835.60 5,000.00
{i) Terms of borrowings:
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
Particulars Terms of repayment Interest rate Z in lakhs Z in lakhs
Sundaram Finance Limited/ Monthly instalments over a o7 KA
Kotak Mahindra # period of 4 years. 2eis 15 P
. 5.15% to 5.55 P.A,
HDFC Bank Limited Single repayment at the end 2,500.00 5,000.00

of 6 months.

payable on monthly

basis

# Refer note-17 for current maturities of finance lease obligation. Also refer note 3D for reclassification to lease liability on

adoption of Ind AS 116.

(i) Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Z in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Cash and cash equivalents 8.620.43 3,139.156
Current borrowings including interest accrued (2,846.53) (5,018.63)
Non-current borrowings - (288.67)
Net debt 5,782.90 (2,168.15)
Cash and cash Current borrowings Non-current Total
equivalents including interest borrowings
accrued

Net debt as at March 31, 2018 19.106.93 - (238.33) 18,868.60
Cash flows (15,967.77) (5,000.00) (48.60) (21,016.37)
Interest expense - (18.63) (55.96) (74.59)
Interest paid - - 54.22 54,22
Net debt as at March 31, 2019 3,139.16 (5,018.63) (288.67) (2,168.14)
Cash flows 5,490.28 2,164.40 - 7.654.68
Interest expense - (10.93) - (10.93)
Interest paid 18.63 18.63
Reclassified to Lease Liabilities 288.67

Net debt as at March 31, 2020 8,629.45 (2,846.53) 5,494.25
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Note 14: Provisions

Non-Current

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
(a) Provision for employee benefits:

(i) Gratuity (Refer note 32) 101.26 =

(i) Compensated absences (Refer note 32) 97.01 0.38
(b) Provision for warranty™ 135.51 098.74
(c) Others = 44.60
Total 333.78 143.72
Current

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs Zinlakhs
(a) Provision for employee benefits:

(i) Compensated absences (Refer note 32) 13.49 7.29
(b) Provision for warranty* 125.41 92.59
(c) Others 44.60 -
Total 183.50 99.88
Notes:

*“Provision for warranty claims represents the best estimate of the future outflow of economic benefits that will be
required under Companies obligation for warranties under sale of power strapping machines and standard
equipments. As per Company policy, the estimate of future warranty costs is based on past experience, usually
based on an analysis of past warranty costs from the date of original product sale.

Movement in provisions:

March 31, 2020

March 31. 2019

a. Provision for warranty
Opening balance

Additional provisions recognised
Amounts used during the year
Closing balance

Classified as:

Short term

Long term

b. Provision for Others
Opening balance

Amounts used during the year
Closing balance

Classified as:

Short term

Long term

191.33 141.78
137.70 87.48
(68.11) (37.93)
260.92 191.33
125.41 92.59
135.51 98.74
44.60 45.48
- (0.88)
44.60 44.60
44.60 -
e 44.60
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Note 15: Deferred Tax Liability (Net)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs Z in lakhs
Deferred tax Asset/(Liability)
Deferred tax liability
On depreciation (13,739.05) (12,257.69)
Undistributed share of profit of associate recognised during the year - -
(13,739.05) (12,257.69)
Deferred tax assels
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 186.76 501.08
Others 127.95 69.563
314.71 570.61
MAT Credit entitlement 4,068.99 5,754.51
Deferred tax liability (net) (9,355.35) (5,932.57)
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Note 16: Trade payables

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs ¥ in lakhs

Trade payables - micro and small enterprises 2,148.48 648.49
Trade payables - others 24,003.63 18,792.31
Trade payables to related parties 1,353.61 788.34

Total 27,505.72 20,229.15
Note:

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006 ("MSMED Act")
As at
March 31, 2020
¥ in lakhs

As at
March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs

a) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and
. - 1,056.65
remaining unpaid as at year end

b) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining

unpaid as at year end SEes

¢) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond
the appointed day during the year

d) Interest paid other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

e) Interest paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

f) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 16.88
for payments already made * ’

g) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years * 14.77

* These amounts have been already included in point (b) above.

455.89

31.65

23.66

7.99
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Note 17: Other financial liabilities

Current
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs T in lakhs
(a) Current maturities of finance lease obligations™ E 99.57
(b) Capital creditors 73.03 201.87
(c) Employee benefits payables 824.29 916.22
(d) Interest accrued on borrowings 10.93 18.63
(e) Others 1.31 4.46
Total 909.56 1,240.75
*Refer note 3D for reclassification to lease liability on adoption of Ind AS 116.
Note 18: Contract liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs T in lakhs
Contract liabilities - Income received in advance 86.82 74.43
Contract liabilities - Advances from customers 952.55 637.89
Total 1,039.37 712.32
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs T in lakhs
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of
the period
Revenue from operations 712.32 546.89
Total 712.32 546.89
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Note 19: Current tax asset/liabilities (net)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Zin lakhs T in lakhs

Opening balance (368.60) 1,275.25
Add: Current tax payable for the year 5,649.76 5,588.36
Add: Tax expense utilised against MAT credit (1,639.06) (375.38)
Less: Taxes paid (4,696.90) (6.856.83)
Closing balance (1,054.80) (368.60)
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 20: Other liabilities

Current
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
(a) Statutory dues payable 561.73 1,009.09
(b) Others 2.50 2.50
Total 564.23 1,011.59
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Note 21: Revenue from operations*

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Revenue from contract with customers:
(a)  Sale of products® 1,15,020.83 1,18,246.78
(b)y  Sale of services 16,735.96 15,294.39
(c)  Other operating revenue (refer note A below) 1,222.57 1,290.36
Total 1,32,979.36 1,34,831.53
* Includes sale of traded products ¥ 39,093.09 lakhs (March 31, 2019: ¥ 40,179.34 lakhs)
Note A:
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs Z in lakhs
1 Scrap sales 399.61 588.92
2 Duty drawback and other export incentives 711.65 588.95
3 Royalty income 111.30 112.49
Total 1,222.56 1,290.36
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Note 22: Other income

Particulars For the yearended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
T in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
(a) Interest income
Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated as FVTPL :
(i) Bank deposits 301.89 629.05
(i) Finance lease assets 38.87 7.49
(iiiy Security deposits and retention money 28.59 22.58
369.35 659.12
(b) Other non-operating income
(i) Foreign exchange differences (net) 611.65 380.66
(i) Liabilities no longer required written back 3.74 1.74
(ii)) Provision for doubtful debts written back 132.64 -
(iv) Cash discount received 12.78 1.46
(v) Miscellaneous income 30.71 38.55
(Vi) Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 11.22 -
802.74 422.41
Total 1,172.09 1,081.53
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Note 23.a Cost of materials consumed

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs Z in lakhs
Raw materials at the beginning of the year 5,036.34 1,825.21
Add: Purchases 50,184.91 52,514.31
Less: Raw materials at the end of the year 4,217.27 5,036.34
Cost of material consumed 51,003.98 49,303.18

Note 23.b Purchase of traded goods

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs Z in lakhs
Films 3,635.64 3,457.52
Others 24,545.81 27,271.88
Total 28,181.45 30,729.40

Note 23.c Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs Z in lakhs
Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods 2,773.04 3,352.42
Work-in-progress 3,182.59 2,301.31
Stock-in-trade (including goods in transit) 4,441.92 3,963.69
10,397.55 9.617.42
Inventories at the beginning of the vear:
Finished goods 3,352.42 3,391.46
Work-in-progress 2,301.31 3,855.96
Stock-in-trade (including goods in transit) 3,963.69 3,039.4¢9
9,617.42 10,286.91

Net (increase) / decrease (780.13) 669.49
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Note 24: Employee benefits expense

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs Z in lakhs
Salaries, wages and bonus 20,201.67 18,785.54
Contribution to provident and other funds 644.45 586.59
Gratuity (refer note 32) 154.89 151.03
Staff welfare expenses 623.27 652.80
Total 21,624.28 20,175.96
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Note 25: Finance costs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Interest expense on:
(i) Leased liabilities 91.99 55.96
(i) Borrowings including bills discounted 805.32 661.10
(iii) Interest on income tax 150.11 92.23
(iv) Others 35.66 2.51
Total 1,083.08 811.80
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Note 26: Other expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Z in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Consumption of stores, spares and loose tools 371.44 392.83
Power, fuel and water charges 2,278.89 2,216.28
Rent (Refer note 30) - 348.84
Repairs and maintenance - buildings 61.46 85.44
Repairs and maintenance - machinery 286.86 268.55
Repairs and maintenance - others 259.21 372.94
Insurance 279.66 286.87
Rates and taxes 48.89 42.41
Advertisement and publicity 83.58 140.90
Freight and forwarding (net) 2,443.87 2,382.46
Travelling and conveyance 1,889.63 1,719.64
Donations and contributions 0.95 0.20
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer note 36) 58.72 37.29
Legal and professional 195.90 260.32
Payment to auditors (refer note below) 17.49 15.00
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) - 58.36
Provision for loss allowance on trade receivables - 612.18
Printing and stationery 54.47 53.19
Warranty expenses 137.70 87.48
Communication 345.11 327.28
Amortisation of lease hold land - 3.65
Sales commission 125.49 183.08
Bad debts and advances written off - 56.92
Bank charges 91.60 100.59
Miscellaneous expenses 400.65 424.06
Total 9.431.57 10.476.76
Note: Details of payments to auditors
As auditor:
- Statutory audit 13.00 13.00
- Tax audit 2.00 2.00
- certification 1.00 -
- Reimbursement of expenses 1.49 -
17.49 15.00
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27. Income tax expense

(a) Income tax expense

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

T in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Current tax 5,649.76 5,688.36
Deferred tax 1,767.46 1,950.36
Tax related to current year (A) 7,417.22 7.538.72
Taxes related to prior year (B) 65.47 1.29
Deferred tax on undistributed share of profits of
associale - -
Total tax expense [(A+B) 7.482.69 7.540.01
(b} Reconciliation of tax expense and
accounting profit:
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Z in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Profit before Tax 20,933.70 21,362.78
Tax rate 34.94% 34.94%
Income tax expense at income tax rate 7.315.07 7,465 01
(i) Tax effect of items not deductible in
calculating income tax:
Interest on income tax 52.45 32,23
Corporate social responsibility expense 20.85 3.89
Amortisation of lease hold land 5.34 1.28
Interest on MSME vendors - 279
(iiy Chapter VI-A Deduction (22.63) -
{iii) Olhers- shorl/(excess) 46.14 33,51
Income tax expense 7417.22 7,538.72
Effective tax rate 35.43% 35.29%
{c) Deferred tax movements
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) In relation to : ¥ in lakhs

Depreciation Provision for Share optlons MAT Credit Others Total
doubtful debts and outstanding Entitlement
advances account

As at March 31, 2018 (10,111.21) 287.17 - 6,091.75 126.75 (3,605.54)
(Charged)/credited to :
Profit or loss (2,146.48) 213.91 % (337.24) (90.88)  (2,360.69)
Other comprehensive income - - - - 33.66 33.66
As at March 31, 2019 (12,257.68) 501.08 - 5,754.51 69.53 (5,932.57)
(Charged)/credited to :
Profit or loss (1,481.36) (314.32) (1,685.52) 217 (3,479.03)
On share of profit of associate a - a: , . =
Other comprehensive income - - - - 56.25 56.25

As at March 31, 2020 (13,739.05) 186.76 - 4.,068.99 127.95 (9,355.35)
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28. Earning Per Share

Basic eamings /(loss) per share amounls are calculated by dividing the profit/loss for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year

Diluted eamings /(loss) per share amounts are calculaled by dividing the profitloss altributable to equity holders (after adjusting for interest on the converlible
preference shares) by the weighled average number of equity shares oulstanding during the year plus lhe weighted average number of equity shares Lhat would be
issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Profit after tax (% in lakhs) A 14,206.93 14,566.59
Number of shares issued and subscribed (Nos.) B 7.41,52,940 8,2536,126
Weighted average number of shares (Nos.) C 7,93,75,253 9,46 42,948
Basic and Diluted EPS (%) AC 17.90 14.61
29. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for}
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
€ in lakhs T in lakhs

(a) Contingent liabilities®

(i) In respect of excise mallers 5788 59 13

(i) In respect of service tax matlers 116.94 152.44

(iii) In respect of custom matlers 19.44 19.44

(iv) In respect of sales lax/vat malters 2,08182 1,518.12

{v) In respect of Income tax matlers - 128.74

(vi) In respect of civil and labour malters 3.75 3.61

2,279.84 1,881.49

{b) Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed in capital account and not provided for 510.08 261.90
(Net of advances paid amounting to ¥ 74.33 lakhs (March 31,2019 ¥ 110.2 lakhs)).

# All the above malters are subject to legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of the management the legal proceedings, when
ultimately concluded, will not have material effect on results of operations or financial position of the Company

(c) The Company has evaluated the impact of the Supreme Court Judgment in case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandit And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner (Il West Bengal" and the related circular (Circular No. ©-)/1(33)2018/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20,2019 issued by the Employees’
Providen! Fund Organisalion in refation o non-exclusion of certain allowances fram the definition of "basic wages" of the relevanl employees for the purposes of
determining contribution lo provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Acl, 1952, In the assessment ol the management, Ihe
aforesaid maller is not likely to have a significant impact and accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements

30. Leases

As indicated in lhe note 2.1, the company has adopted Ind AS 116 refrospectively from April 01, 2019, but has not restated comparatives for year ended Margh 31
2019, as permilted under the specific transition provisions in the standard, The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new |pasing rules are Iherofore
recognised in the opening balance sheat on 1 April 2019, The new accounting policies are disclosed in nole 2.12

On adoption of Ind AS 116, the company recognised lease Jiabilities in relation to leases which had previously been classified as 'Operaling leases' under the principles
of Ind AS 17, Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremenlal borrowing rate
as of 1 April 2019, The weighted average lessee's incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 April 2019 was 8.17%

For leases previously classified as finance leases the enlity recogmised the carrying amount of the lease assset and lease laibility immediately before lransition as the

carrying amount of the right of use asset and the lease liability at the date of initial application. The measurement principles of Ind AS 116 are only applied after that
dale

(i) Measurement of lease liabilities

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 March 2019 2,051.04
Discaunted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rale at the date of initial application 577.24
Add: finance lease liabilities recognised as at 31 March 2019 288.67

(Less): Short-term leases not recognised as a liability =
(Less): low-value leases not recognised as a liability =
Add/(less): conlracts reassessed as |ease contracls =
Add/(less): adjustments as a result of a differant treatment of extension and termination oplions =
Add/(less): adjustments relating to changes in lhe index or rate affecting variable payments -
Lease liabilily recognised as at 1 April 2019 865.91

Of which are:
Current lease liabilities 330,82
Non-currenl lease liabilities 535.09

(ii) Measurement of right-of-use assets
The associated right-of-use assets for property leases were measured on a retrospective basis as if the new rules had always been applied

(iii) Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on 1 April 2019

The change in accounting policy affecled the following ilems in the balance sheel on 1 April 2019
1 properly,plant and equipment - decrease by INR 365 07

2. right-of -use assels - increase by INR 2,303 01

3 deferred tax assets(nel) - Nil

4. prepayments - decrease by INR 1,360 7

5. borrowing and other financial liabilities - decrease by INR 288 67

6. lease liabililies - increase by INR 865.91

The net impact on retained earnings on 1 April 2019 was Nil

(iv) Lessor accounting
[he-gomiptinytitrm) agpd to make adjusiments to the accounting for as
co Chagger -

sols hold as lessor under operating leases as a result of the adoplion of Ind AS 116
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31. Related Party Disclosures
a) Name of related parties
Crown Holdings Inc. USA

Strapex Holdings Limited, UK
Stopak India Private Limited

Names of fellow subsidiaries have been given in (b) below :

Key management persennel

R V S Ramakrishna

Gaurav Maheshwari

Lakshmi Narayana Raju Namburi
G Ravindra Babu

Krishna Kumar

Deep Chowdhury

Vanaja Kaleru

Director

Richard Eben Morgan
Nils Alfons Michael Stenger
Patricia Marie Anne Chidiac

b) Transactions with related parties during the year

Description of relationship

Ultimate Holding company

Holding company

Associate Company

— Managing Director

— Whole-time Director
— Whole-time Director
— Whole-time Director

— Whole-time Director

— Chief Financial officer

— Company Secretary

— Director
— Director
— Director

{i) Purchase of raw materials, components and finished goods

Post employment benefit plan

Signode India Gratuity Trust
Signode India Superannuation Trust

(% in lakhs

Name of related party Relationship For the year ended For the year ended

March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019
signode Industrial Group Gmbh Fellow Subsidiary 702.87 724.26
Signode Engineered Products Fellow Subsidiary 693.73 778.27
Signode Korea Inc Fellow Subsidiary 582.80 559.84
signode Kabushiki Kaisha. Fellow Subsidiary 562.33 544.16
Caretex Asia Company Limited Fellow Subsidiary 448.30 642.28
OY M.Haloila AB Fellow Subsidiary 361.21 189.13
SPG Packaging Systems Group Gmbh Fellow Subsidiary 328.97 223.46
signode Export & Distributor Service Fellow Subsidiary 284.72 209.52
Muller Load Containment Solutions Fellow Subsidiary 280.92 408.78
Signode System Gmbh Fellow Subsidiary 104.76 76.86
Signode Packaginng (Qingdao) Co Ltd Fellow Subsidiary 65.15 0.57
Haloila Bulgaria Eood Fellow Subsidiary 64.67 2749
Storfast Warehouse Automation Fellow Subsidiary 50.92 169.74
M.P.S. Metal Plastik Sanayi Cember Ve Pak Sist.Iml.Ve Fellow Subsidiary
Tic.A.S. 29.54 40.41
laosef Kihlberg AB Fellow Subsidiary 17.84 0.34
signode System Packaging Gmbh & Co KG Fellow Subsidiary 9.93 -
Loveshaw Carporation Fellow Subsidiary 0.84 21.03
Midwest Industrial Packaging Inc Fellow Subsidiary 0.61 =
Signode Midwest Steel Fellow Subsidiary 0.45 0.03
Mezger Heftsysteme Gmbh Fellow Subsidiary 0.22 -

Fellow Subsidiary
Mima Films Sprl 0.00 0.37
Stopak India Private Limited Associate Company 246.59 164.25
4,837.37 4,780.79
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(ii) Revenue from operations

(% in lakhs)

Name of related party

Relationship

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Signode Engineered Products-Glenview Fellow Subsidiary 2,113.17 1,775.12
Signode Kabushiki Kaisha-Japan Fellow Subsidiary 2,051.68 23.16
Signode Engineered Packaging Solutions Fellow Subsidiary 1,848.30 2,804 01
signode Netherlands (Earlier Dacro) Fellow Subsidiary 1,274.91 991.32
Signode Industrial Group Mexico S DE RL DE CV Fellow Subsidiary 1,212.33 656.31
Signode System GMBH Fellow Subsidiary 705.00 182.05
Signode System Packaging GMBH & Co. KG Fellow Subsidiary 615.75 1,151.52
Signode Korea Inc-Korea Fellow Subsidiary 271.78 26,15
Signode Singapore Pte Lid-Singapore Fellow Subsidiary 214.56 176.60
Signode Metals Europe- Germany Fellow Subsidiary 214.26 41.80
Signode Packaging System Limited Kenya Fellow Subsidiary 205.82 314.40
Orgapack( Signode Industrial Group- Packading Systems
Europe) - Dietikon Fellow Subsidiary 205.28 156.84
Signade Packaging (Qingdao) Co, Ltd-Qingdao Fellow Subsidiary 203.58 132.50
Signode Australia Fellow Subsidiary 89.62 270.33
Slgnode Service Business - Glenview Fellow Subsidiary 66.95 5210
Signode International Holdirigs LLC - Taichung Fellow Subsidiary 50.06 4.60
Signode Industrial Group LLC - Glenview Fellow Subsidiary 25.59 4.13
Slgnode Packaging Group (Malaysia Sdn Bhd) Fellow Subsidiary 9.65 37.46
SPG Packaging Systems GMBH - Hilden Fellow Subsidiary 6.07 14.91
Signode Thailand Ltd - Thailand Fellow Subsidiary 5.89 106.93
Signoda New Zealand Fellow Subsidiary 3.77 2,94
Signode Hong Kong Limited Fellow Subsidiary 0.21 0.36
Stopak India Private Limited Associate Company 5.00 5.27
Total 11,399.22 8,930.82
(iii) Reimbursement of Expenditure from

(% in lakhs)

Name of related party Relationship For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
SPG Packaging UK Lid - Burntwood Fellow Subsidiary 30.28 33.38
(iv) Reimbursement of Expenditure to
(Z in lakhs)
Name of related party Relationship For the year ended For the year ended
March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019
Signode Netherlands (Earlier Dacro B.V) Fellow Subsidiary 53.83 43.30
(v) Services received
(¥ in lakhs)

Name of related party

Relationship

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Signode System Gmbh

Fellow Subsidiary

38.51

(vi) Post employment benefit plan for the benefitted employees - Contribution to fund

(Z in lakhs)

Name of related party Relationship For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Signode india Gratuity Trust Trust 208 66 45167
Signode India Superannuation Trust Trust 78 69 8679
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(vii) Share Buyback

(¥ in lakhs)

Name of related party

Relationship

For the year ended
March 31. 2020

For the year ended
March 31. 2019

Strapex Holdings Limited

Holding company

10,650.00

27,000.00

(viii) Payment to Key Management Personnel :

The remuneration of the directors and other members of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

Short-term benefits 89263 1,018.72
Share-based payments/Bonus 280,71 290,80
Total* 1,173.34 1,309.52

“Provision for incremental gratuity liability and leave encashment for the current year in respect of directors has not been considered above, since the
provision is based on a actuarial basis for the Company as a whole

c) Related party balances outstanding as at year end :

Payables

(% in lakhs
As at

Name of related party Relationship As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Signode [ndustrial Group Gmbh el 247.68
Signode Korea Inc RO B RSy 203.40 2510
Signode Engineered Products ] 196.99 202.84
Caretex Asia Compary Limited Sy 123.68 54.12
Signode Export & Distributor Service Fellow Subsidiary 89.20 42,69
Signode Kabushiki Kaisha fsllowispbsidiay 85.59 168.84
Muller Load Containment Solutions el SUbS A, 59,67 3134
SPG Packaging Systems Group Gmbh Fellow Subsidiary 58.68 22.58
Signode Packaging (Qingdao) co Ltd pelomSosidiay 57.85 048
Signode System Europe Fellow Subsidiary 52.08 0.85
Signode Netherlands (Earlier Dacro) ez ey 26.73 2153
OY M.Haloila AB U] 2235 42.37
M P S Metal Plastik Sanayi Cember Ve Pak.Sist.Iml.Ve Fellow Subsidiary
TicAS 12.05
Haloila Bulgaria Eood Fellow Subsidiary 10.92 17.62
Storfast Warehouse Automation Fellow Subsidiary 8.60
Signode Industrial Group LLC Fellow Subsidiary 5.50
Signode System Packaging Gmbh & Co Fellow Subsidiary 5.30 105.01
Josef Kihiberg AB Fellow Subsidiary 1.95 033
Loveshaw Corporation Fellow Subsidiary 1.25 7.86
Signode System Gmbh Fellow Subsidiary 0.22
Stopak India Private Limited Associate Subsidiary 84.12 4456
Total 1,353.61 788.34
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Receivables

Name of related party Relationship As at As at
March31.2020 |  March34,2019 |

Sighode Industrial Group Mexico S DE RL DE CV Fellow Subsidiary 1,276.38 591.70
Signode System Gmbh - Germany el o EE 786.69 141.49
Signode Enginesred Products-Glenview Fellow Subsidiary 706.04 16.75
Signode System Packaging GMBH & Co. KG Fellow Subsidiary 638.30 833.12
Signode Engineersd Packaging Solutions Fellow Subsidiary 419.29 469.77
Signode Korea Inc Fellow Subsidiary 205.25 19.78
Signode Netherlands (Eariier Dacro) Fellow Subsidiary 111.43 157.34
Orgapack( Signode Industrial Group- Packaging Systems Ey Fellow Subsidiary 108.65 53.41
Signode Metals Europe Fellow Subsidiary 40.47 36.00
Signode Packaging (Qingdao) Co Ltd - China Fellow Subsidiary 36.82 65.74
Signode Austrafia Fellow Subsidiary 3071 17.98
Signode Packaging System Limited Kenya Fellow Subsidiary 23.86 108.84
Signode Singapore Pte Lid-Singapare Fellow Subsidiary 22.61 435
Signode Mexico S de R L de C V. Fellow Subsidiary 19.89 2.67
Signode Service Business Fellow Subsidiary 15.30 13.20
Signode Kabushiki Kaisha-Japan Fellow Subsidiary 14.73 2.63
SPG Packaging UK Ltd - Burntwood Fellow Subsidiary 7.76 8.92
SPG Packaging Systems GMBH - Hilden Fellow Subsidiary 6.45 6.90
Signode Systems (Thailand) Ltd - Rayong Fellow Subsidiary 2.06 0.87
Signode Packaging Group Malaysla Fellow Subsidiary 1.77 12.42
Signode New Zealand Fellow Subsidiary 0.71 0.85
Loveshaw - South Canaan Fellow Subsidiary 0.21
Stopak India Private Limited Associate Company 0.73 1.48
Total 4,475.87 2,566.41

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm'’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-

end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash

receivables or payables

There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party

Investments

Name of related party Relationship As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Slopak India Private Limited Associate 5,428,53 4,963 32
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32, Disclosures as required under, “Employee Benefits"”

Defined contribution plans

The Company's contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged
as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees

Contribution to Provident and other funds, 2019-20 201819
Employars Contribution lo Provident Fund 482,50 44521
Employers' Contribution to Other Funds 161.96 141.38
Total 644.46 §86.59

Defined benefit plans

Thi Company has a dafined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five

drawn salary) for each completed year of service The scheme is funded.

years or more of service gets a gratuity on depariure at 15 days salary (last

Consequent lo the application of Indian Accounling Standard 19 "Employee Benefils",all employee benefits have been determined in accordance with the Standard

a) Disclosures requlired for Gratulty in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 19 "Employee Benefits” are set out in the table below:

(i) Amount to be recognised in Balance sheet

(% In lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 | As at March 31, 2019
Present Value of Funded Obligations 2709.59 2,397 95
Falr Value of Plan Assels (2.608.33) (2.403,88)
Net Liability 101.26 [5.93)
Amounts in Balance Shieat
Liability 101.28 -
Assals 593
et Liabllity 101.26 {6.93)
(iia) Expense to be recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss
(¥ In lakhs)
particul For the year ended For the year ended
articulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
Current Service Cost 158.31 138.76
Interest on net defined benafit lability/ (asset) (3.42) 12.27
Total expense charge to profit and loss account 154.89 151.03
(ilb) Amount recorded In other comprehensive income (OoCly
(% In lakhs
particul For the year ended For the year ended
articwars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Remeasurements dring the peériod due to
Changes in financial assumptions 129 11 99.29
Changeas in demographic assumphiong - {0 10)
Experiance adjustments 3040 1248
Actugl retum on plan assets less interest on plan assels 144 (15 34)
Total amount recognised In OCI 160.96 96.32




(i) Reconciliation of Benefit Obligation and Plan Assets for the period

(£ in lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended

March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Change in Delined Benefit Obligation

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 2397.89 2,093 16
Current Service Cosl 15831 138 76
|nterest on dofined benefit abligation 163,25 148.12
| Remeasurgments due o
Acluarial loss/ (gain) arising from change in fimaneial assumphion 129 11 99 29
Changes in demographic assumplions - (0,10}
Fclimrinl loss/ (gain) arsing on account of experiance changes 30 40 12.48
Banelits Paid (167,44 @374
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 2,709.58 2,397.95
Change in Fair Value of Assets
Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets 240388 1.094.77
|_Contrlbutions by Empioyear 208 66 451.67
Interest on plan assats 166.68 135.84
| Remeasurements due to
Aelual retlrn on plan assets less interest on plan assels _[1.44) 15.34
Banafits Faid 169.44) (93.74)
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 2,608.33 2.403.88

(iv) Expected contribution to the fund in the next year

For the year ended

For the year ended

Note:

GEWLTE March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Gratuit E0.00 80,00
(v) Asset Information

(% In lakhs]

Category of Assets (% Allocation) Percentage Amount

As at As at
20 oy March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018

Insurer Managed Funds 100% 100% 2,608 33 2,403 88

(vi) Princlpal Actuarial Assumptions
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018

Discount Rate (p.a.) 6.60% 7.45%
Expected Rale of Return on Plan Assets (p.a) 6.60% 7 45%
Salary Escalalion Rate {(p.a.) B.50% B.50%
Retirement Age 58 10 B0 years
Mortality Table TALM [2012-14) Uit IALM (2012-14) Uit
Expected average remaining working lives of
employees (years) 6.05 5.0
Leaving Service Rates (p.a.) Rates (p.a.}

21-30 19 00% 19.00%

3140 9 00% 9.00%

41-50 3.00% 3.00%

51 & Above 15.00% 15 00%
(vii) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
As at As at

ffean March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Espected benefits for year 1 471.92 413.26
Expactad benalits for year 2 396.22 308 90
Expetied bengfits for year 3 37007 339.98
Expected benefits for year 4 34132 318.56
Expected benefits for year 5 31627 303.76
Expected benglils for yesar 6 29507 27530
Expacted benafits for year 7 196.29 25837
Espected benefils for year 8 17562 179.25
Expected banefils for year 9 161.83 162 94
Expected benefits for year 10 and above 1,681.53 1,510.17

a) The eslimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority. promotion, increments and other relevant factors




(vIll) Sensitivity Analysis

Sensitivity of gross defined benefit obligalion as mentioned above, in case of change in significant assumptions, would be as under

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Discount rate

(i) Discount rale -50 basis poinl 2,791.92 71.95
(i) Discount rate +50 basis point 2,632.08 (67 82)
Salary Increase rate

(i) rate -50 basis point (76.53) (59.99)
(i) rate +50 basis point 80.46 61.64

These sensilivitie
conditions at the accounting dale. There have been no changes from the prev

b) Long term Compensated Absences

s have been calculated to show the movement in gross defined benefit obligalion in isolation and assuming there are no olher changes in markel

fous periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analyses

It includes eamed leave and sick leave The present value of compensated absences and the related current service cost are measured using the projected unit credit

method with actuarial valuation being carried al each balance sheet date

(1) Amount to be recognised In Balance sheet

(¥ in lakhs)

(Particulars As at March 31, 2020 | As at March 31, 2018
IDalinad Benefit Obligation 1.198.04 1,025.02
|Fair Vialua of Pian Assats {1,088.54) (1,017.35)
Net Liability 110 61 7.87
Classified as

-Long term 97.02 7.67

- Short term 1348 -
Principal Acturial Assumptions
|Discount Rata (p.a) 6 60% 7.45%
Salary Escalation Rate (p @) 8.50% 8.50%
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33. Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities:

The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, their carrying amounts and fair value amounts are set out below:

(Z in lakhs)
As at March 31,2020 As at March 31,2019
Financial assets Level Fair value Amortised cost Total Fair Fair value Amortised Total Fair
through OCI Value through OCI cost Value
Investments 3 165 1.65 1.65 - 1.65
Trade and other receivables 3 - 30,616.19 30,616 18 - 28,309.01 28,309.01
Other financial assets 3 - 2,220.34 2,220.34 2,235.12 2,235.12
Cash and cash equivalents 3 - 8,628.43 8,629.43 3.139.15 3,139.16
As at March 31,2020 As at March 31,2019
Financial liabilities Level Fair value Amortised cost Total Fair Fair value Amortised Total Fair
through OCI Value through OCl cost Value
Borrowings 3 - 2,835.60 2,835.60 - 5,189.10 5,189.10
Trade payables 3 - 27,505 72 27,505.72 20,229 16 20,229.16
Other financial liabilities 3 909.56 909.56 - 1,240.76 1,240.76
Lease liabilities 3 - 749.91 749.91 - - -

34. Financial risk management objectives and policies:

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise retention money payable, trade and other payables, security deposits, book overdraft and short
term borrowings. The Company's principal financial assets include Investments, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that
derive directly from its operations.

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company is exposed to market
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk

The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The senior professionals working to manage the financial risks and the
appropriate financial risk governance framewark for the Company are accountable to the Board of Directors and Audit Committee. This process
provides assurance to Campany's senior management that the Company's financial risk-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risk are identified, measured and managed in aceordance with Company pelicies and Company risk objective.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized as below:

(A) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices
comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price rigks, such as equity price risk and commedity price risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risks include deposits, investments and foreign currency receivables and payables. The sensitivity analyses in the
following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2020 The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying
vallies of graluity, pension obligation and other post-ratirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the
relevant Profit and Loss item is the effesl of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial
liabilities held as of March 31, 2020

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company operating activities (when revenue or
expense is denominated in foreign currency). Foreign currency exchange rate exposure is balanced by purchasing of goods from the respective
countries The Company evaluates exchange rale exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and follows establish risk management policies.

Foreign currency exposures recognised by the Company that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are shown below
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34, Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont):
The year end foreign currency exposures that have nol been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below:
a) Foreign currency risk exposure:

Trade recelvables In foreign currency:

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Currency ¥ in lakhs Forelgn Currency in lakhs Ein lakhs Forel'gn Currency
in lakhs
usD 4,694 82 62,31 323576 46.76
EURQ 1,206 29 14 55 519 59 6.69
Trade payables in foreign currency:
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 20189
Currency % In lakhs Foreign Currency in lakhs € in lakhs Foreign Currency
In lakhs
usD 760.07 10 11 658 00 9.52
EURO 233.08 281 12860 1.67
GBP 0.37 0.00 1.28 002
CHF 247 68 3.16 105.01 1.61
JYP 10.23 15.39 5.81 901
c) Sensltlvity

Wilh respect to the above unhedged exposure the sensitivity is as follows:

Forelgn Currency (FC) Sensitivity Impact on PET

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
¥ In lakhs ¥ In lakhs
Z/USD-increase/(decrease) by 5% 196.74 128.89
F/EURO-increasel/(decrease) by 5% 48.66 19.50
¥/CHF-increase(decrease) by 5% (12.38) (5.25)
%/GBP-increase(decrease) by 5% (0.02) (0.06)
FJPY-nerease(decrease) by 5% (0.51) (0.29)

Total Impact 232.49 142.79




(B) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk lhat counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company
is exposed to credil risk from ils operaling activities (primarily lrade receivables), including deposits with banks and financial instilulions, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial instruments.

C) Liquldity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on lime or at reasonable price. The Company's objective
is to at all imes maintain optimum levels of liquidity lo meet its cash and liquidity requiremants. The Company clesely monilars its liguidity position and
deploys a robust cash management system. Il maintains adequate source of financing through the use of shorl term pank deposits and cash credit facility

Processes and policies related to such risks are ovarsaon by senior management. Management manitors the Company's liquidity pasition through rolling
forecasls on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to ils debt and concluded it to as below

The tables below analyse the Company's financial assets into relevant maturity groupings based on their expected malurities for all non derivalive financial
assets and financial liabilities. The amount disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow. Balances dus within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounling is not significant :

(€ In lakhs)
Contractual maturltles of financlal liabllities Less than 6 months 6 months to 12 months More than 1 year Total
March 31, 2020
Borrowings 2,835.60 - E 2,835.60
Trade payables 27,505.72 - - 27,505.72
Other financial liabilities 909.56 - - 909 56
Lease liabilities 182 10 217.98 349.83 74991
Total FInanclal liahilities 31,432.98 217.98 349.83 32,000.79
March 31, 2019
Borrowings 5,029 16 7041 189.10 5,288.67
Trade payables 20,229 16 - - 20,229 16
Other financial liabilities 1.240.75 - - 1,240 75
Total Financlal lHabillties 26,499.07 70.41 189.10 26,758.58

D) Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rale change at the end of the reporting period are as follows. The Company does not has any variable
rate borrowings.

(¥ in lakhs)
Nature of borrowings As at March 31,2020  As at March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs % in lakhs
Fixed rate borrowings
Short term 2,835.60 5,000.00
Total Fixed rate borrowings 2,835.60 5,000.00

35, Capital Management
For the purposes of Company capital management, Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company and all other equity reserves
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and maximize shareholder value




U]

Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

36. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expense
Prescribed CSR expenditure as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013

Details of CSR spent during the financlial year

(% in lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Partlculars
© March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
{a) Total amount to be spent during the year 167.26 215.67
(b) Actual spent during the year 58.72 37.29
(c) Amount unspent (a-b) 108.53 178.38
Amount paid for
- acquisition/construction of assets - ~
- other purposes 58.72 37.29

37. Segment Information

Primary Segment

Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS- 108 on "Operating segments", the Company's business activity falls within a single operating
segment viz. “Industrial Packaging". Accordingly, the disclosure requirements of Ind AS- 108 are not applicable.

Geographical Segments

Since the Group's activities/operations are primarily within the country and considering the nature of products/services it deals in, the risks and
returns are same and as such there is only one geographical segment.

Geographical Information
Revenue from external customers: The Company's revenue from external customers basis location of the customer are as under :
(¥ in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Within India 1,13,325.90 1,15,400.08
Outside India 18,430.89 18.141.11
Total 1,31,756.79 1,33,541.17

Information about major customer
There is no single customer who contributed 10% or more of the Company's revenue during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.

38. Disclosure of additional information pertaining to the associate company

N ts Le.
et Assets l.e. total assets minus total llabllitles Share of Profit before tax

Entity Name i o;zn:g::‘l:gated Amount % of c::‘:fg kiS00 Amount

March 31, 2020

Holding Company

Signode India Limited 95% 97,641.87 97% 20,933.70

Associate

Stopak India Private Limited 5% 5,430.18 3% 755.92
100% 1,03,072.05 100% 21,689.62

March 31, 2019

Holding Company

Signode India Limited 96% 1,30,015.43 97% 21,362.78

Associate

Stopak India Private Limited 4% 4,964.97 3% 743.82
100% 1,34,980.40 100% 22,106.60
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sSummarised financial information of associate - Stopak India Private Limited

Summarised Balance Sheet

Current assets

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Cash and bank balances 6,119.61 5,102.51
Other assets 4,711.18 467197
Total current assets 10,830.79 9,774.48
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment including intangibles and ROU asset 2,047 86 1,653.34
Other assets 56,83 63.95
Total non-current assets 2,104.69 1,717.29
Total assets 12,935.48 11,491.77
Current liabilities 2,293.90 2,611.03
Non-current liabilities 627.31 193.40
Total liabilities 2,921.21 2,804.43
Net assets 10,014.27 8,687.34

Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Revenue 10,937.29 11,800.37
Other income 965 62 813.32
Total income 11,902.90 12,613.69
Cost of goods sold 5,093,37 5,850.76
Employee benefits expense 1,182.88 1,316.60
Other expenses 1,981.89 1,704.02
Finance costs 101.79 53.16
Depreciation 260.12 18265
Total expenses 8,620.05 9,207.19
Profit before tax 3,282 86 3,406.50
Tax expense 804 45 982.08
Profit after tax 2,478.40 2,424.42

39. The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing
legislation under Sections 82-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be
contemporangous in nature, the Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the international transactions entered into with the
associated enterprises during the financial year and expects such records to be in existence latest by such date as required under law. The
management is of the opinion that its international transactions are at arm's length and the transfer pricing legislation under Section 92-92F of the
Income-tax Act, 1961 will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision of taxation,
if any

40. Impact of Covid-19 pandemic on the business:

The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted businesses around the globe. In many countries, including India, there has been severe disruption to
regular business operations due to lock-downs, disruptions in transportation, supply chain, travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and other
emergency measures. The Company is engaged in the business of industrial packaging and manufacture of strap, stretch, protective packaging,
packaging tools and equipment that are used to apply the bulk packaging materials

Management has performed a detailed assessment of the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-18) on business operations, and concluded
that no adjustments are required in the financial statements to the carrying value of property, plant and equipment, goodwill, inventories, trade
receivables and other assets of the company. As a result of lockdown the volumes during the lockdown period have been impacted The Company is
monitoring the situation closely and operations are being resumed in a phased manner taking into account directives from the Government However,
the situation with COVID-19 is still evolving and the various preventive measures taken by the Government of India are still in force, leading to a
highly uncertain economic environment Due to these circumstances, Management's assessment of the impact on the subsequent period is
dependent upon circumstances as they evolve
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41, Subsequent to year end, pursuant to shareholders approval via resolution dated July 08, 2020 the company has acquired remaining 69.44%
shares in Stopak India Private Limited (i.e., 387,500 shares's @ 2666 per share amounting to Rs. 10,330.75 lacs). Accordingly w.e.f August 28, 2020
the associate company has become wholly owned subsidiary of the company.

42. Previous Year figures have been regrouped/reciassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year classifications/ disclosures.
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